
REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

September 2, 2025 

PAGE75 

The Jasper County Commissioners met this date at 8:30 A.M. C.S.T at 910 S Sparling Ave., 
Rensselaer, Indiana with the following members present: Rein Bontreger, Craig Standish and Ryan 
Hilton. Also present were Auditor, Diana Boersma, Deputy Auditor, Cynthia Slaughter and Eric 
Beaver, the Attorney that represents the Commissioners. Those present stood and recited the 
Pledge of Allegiance led by Mr. Bontreger. There was a brief moment of silence following the 
Pledge. 

MINUTES: Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the minutes from August 4, 2025 and August 
25, 2025 as presented. Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 

PAYROLL CLAIMS: Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the payroll claims with checks 
dated August 15th and August 29th, 2025. Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. 

CLAIMS: Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the claims, as presented. Mr. Standish seconded 
and the motion carried. 

JASPER COUNTY SOIL AND WATER LANA ZIMMER AND JIM MARTIN: Mr. Bontreger 
stated they had asked for a letter of support from the Commissioners in their pursuit of a grant. 
Mr. Bontreger stated the letter of support gives support in kind for the Jasper County Weed Board. 
He stated the county contribution would be general program promotion, making meeting space 
available for public meetings, sharing educational resources, promoting the project, events, 
publications, meetings, and word of mouth. He stated it also includes providing the Weed Board 
with a vehicle, insurance, and fuel. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the letter of support. 
Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. 

CORONER ANDY BOERSMA: Mr. Boersma stated he is concerned on what is being planned 
for the Forensic Center. He stated this started under Commissioner De Young and last year they 
agreed that $4.2 million was too much to spend for a forensic center and $300,000 in architect fees 
was too much to spend. He stated the Titan Group had no interest in it and Hamstra Group came 
up with $1.562 million for a new building. He stated they then had a meeting and they agreed if 
they could keep it at the same amount that the ambulance station was, and that was about $1.5-1. 7 
million, as long as they get the square footage and can do the things that they need to do there they 
were good. He stated there was than an election and this project has moved backwards. He stated 
the Commissioners sit on the Finance Committee and they know the finances. He stated anybody 
that wants to can go to Gateway and find the counties finances, it is open public record. He stated 
they don't make the money that they make in interest in this year by having $100,000 in the bank. 
He stated he has a feeling that the Commissioners do not realize what the Coroner is required to 
do. He stated there is no statute that he can find that says the county has to keep $7 million, $3 
million, $30 million in the bank. He stated there is a statute that governs a book that the coroners 
have to become certified in. He stated the cover of the book says every scene, every time. He stated 
the state thinks they should autopsy every case. He stated an autopsy costs $3,300, they average 
100 calls per year, and that is $330,000 per year. He stated he has asked/begged for years for this 
to be fixed. He stated he does not believe putting an addition on the annex at the north end and 
ripping that thing apart is going to save money, it is going to cost more money. He stated they have 
spent thousands of dollars looking at old buildings, they have spent thousands of dollars trying to 
figure things out and they are going backwards instead of forwards. He stated the Commissioners 
have reasonable thought of how much money they need to keep in their coffers and how much 
money should be spent. He stated he has law that requires him to do the things that he has to do. 
He stated he thinks they are short-changing the deceased taxpayers in the county by not being able 
to provide the investigative things that they need to do. He stated in the beginning nearly 80% of 
people flunked certification and now it is down to about 28% that flunk it because they are getting 
people more and more education. He stated he does not think an addition is going to be beneficial 
to them. He stated they have drug their feet, they agreed on this a year ago and they have done 
everything humanly possible and he is at his wits end. He stated they had another decomp case 
and they need the room, the space, they need to get things, and they need to move it forward. He 
stated the Commissioners have a responsibility to the taxpayers and he has a responsibility and a 
group of laws that he has to follow. He stated he understands that the State has got the idea to 
discontinue stuff and taxes are going to fall but that does not change the fact that they are at 70 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

September 2, 2025 

PAGE76 

CORONER ANDY BOERSMA CONT'D: coroner's cases already this year and it does not change 
the fact that he has statutes that he has to follow. He stated he just does not see how they cannot 
have something decent to work out of, and take care of the dead, and do their job to prove whether 
it is accidental, homicidal, natural, or undetermined. He stated they need to move forward with 
this and not backwards. He stated Jasper County is growing and with infrastructure and people 
comes more police needed, more firemen, more ambulances, and more coroners. Mr. Bontreger 
stated he appreciates Mr. Boersma's comments and that he is very diligent in his job. He stated 
part of the reasons why is that some of the feedback they heard from some of the Council is that 
they felt that some of the other options were a little too expensive. Mr. Bontreger stated he does 
realize there is a growing need. Mr. Bontreger asked Mr. Boersma if it was his opinion that the 
proposed addition would it allow them to at least function better than what they have been. Mr. 
Boersma stated with the current proposed idea they will access the new addition through a 
breezeway and will have to demolish 50% of the existing building and then they have a whole 
bunch of statutes that they have to go through. He stated with a decomp case they have no negative 
airflow anywhere in that building so the whole building will have a very bad smell. He stated it 
needs to be properly built, properly vented, and done correctly. He stated they do not have a place 
for people to shower if they get exposed to something. He stated they have a washer and dryer to 
launder the blankets, covers, and sheets they use but have no place to put contaminated garments. 
He stated they have no place for a family to come and view an individual. He stated even if they 
do this remodel they still do not have a place for them to come and ID the deceased. He stated 
what they do today is take a photograph of the deceased and say is this them. He stated this is kind 
of cold-hearted as it is somebody's loved one. He stated no one wants to come out and see what 
they do and he understands that but he thinks they do not realize what it takes to do what they do. 
He stated he wants something that they can safely work out of and provide the dead person the 
ability for the coroner to speak for them as to the cause, manner, and what happened, and they 
need the facilities to do that in. He stated they have been at near capacity a few times this year. He 
stated their cooler was down but they got that back up and running. He stated please let them do 
what they were trained to do, what they are experienced to do, and be part of the solution and not 
part of the problem. He stated he thinks remodeling the building will be more costlier then it would 
be to build new. Mr. Standish stated they have had multiple meetings as a building committee. 
They have gone through multiple options, looked at a couple of buildings and remodeling's, and 
looked at new buildings with cost estimates of $1.5 to $2.8 million. He stated their last meeting 
was held at the north annex. He stated they looked at moving the cooler out of the building he has 
got now, enlarging the cooler to give it more space, and opening up the autopsy area for more 
room. He stated they looked into moving offices and making a men's/women's locker room. He 
stated this also included using the south wall to make that autopsy area negative pressure. He stated 
they also had a meeting concerning to pursue this in wood or steel. He stated Mr. Boersma was in 
favor of wood. Mr. Standish stated there is a big difference in the price of an engineer drawing for 
wood or engineered drawing for steel. He stated he does not have the numbers with him but they 
were somewhere just over $200,000 on a steel building and right around $170,000 on the wood 
building. He stated it would be 32 by 40 and will be taller then the existing peak with a drive 
through bay with insulated concrete floor for the cooler sweating issue. He stated they also talked 
about pouring a curb on the floor because there has been issues up there with insects in the wood 
so they would have it up off the ground. Mr. Bontreger stated with those details they touch on 
many of your concerns are you saying it is not viable now? Mr. Boersma stated they have 11 filing 
cabinets that are supposed to be fireproof and that is a lot of weight on the floor. He stated when 
he looks at this, with a breezeway between this building and this building and moving things 
between building that it should be inclusive under one roof He stated he just wants it done right 
and not leave a mess for the next one that comes after him. Mr. Boersma discussed passed buildings 
they looked at. He stated as people move into the county they are going to need more space. He 
stated he can see in about 4-5 years it being more than 200 cases a year. Mr. Jack Haberlin, County 
Engineer, stated when they bought the property the coroner is at currently it was a mini golf course. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

September 2, 2025 

PAGE77 

CORONER ANDY BOERSMA CONT'D: and the original building was on a slab and designed 
to take tickets from kids playing miniature golf and go-karts. 

AMIN AL SHELTER ALEX HAMILTON: Alex Hamilton stated he is making a reco=endation 
to the Commissioners to appoint Kendra Hearod as the Director of Animal Control. Mr. Bontreger 
stated they have had the chance to met Kendra and she is doing an outstanding job. Mr. Hilton 
made a motion to approve the Animal Control Board's reco=endation to appoint Kendra Hearod 
as the interim Director of the Animal Shelter. Mr. Standish seconded, and the motion carried. Mr. 
Bontreger stated there have been discussions to put this under the umbrella of the Sheriff's 
Department as far as accountability and chain of co=and. He stated this will assist with animal 
control's ability to process violations and be a smoother interaction with the prosecutor's office if 
needed and the Sheriffs Department in general. 

COURTHOUSE SIDEWALK BID: Mr. Bontreger stated 3 bids were received on August 25th
• He 

stated the 3 bids received were from Larson Danielson, Ellas Construction, and Steve's Specialized 
Services. He stated Larson Danielson is the lowest bid. He stated Kimley Hom, the presiding 
engineer, reviewed the bids and reco=ended that we accept the bid of Larson Danielson for a 
total of$358,206.38. He stated this is about 50% of what the original bid was that was rejected in 
July. Mr. Standish stated the engineer's completion date is December 15th

• Mr. Jack Wampler, 
Larson Danielson, stated there should not be any problem meeting that deadline. He stated it is 
just a few weeks job for them. He stated their main thing is procuring the permits. Mr. Bontreger 
stated that was already done by Kimley Hom, and he should contact Brandon Schreeg for those. 
Mr. Wampler stated they will begin work as soon as possible. Mr. Standish stated to keep in mind 
Oktoberfest is one night on the west side of the courthouse on September 2rii. Mr. Bontreger 
stated the combined total was $358,206.38 and that included the base bid and the bid additive 
number one. Mr. Standish made a motion to approve the bid from Larson Danielson. Mr. Hilton 
seconded, and the motion carried. Mr. Haberlin requested the other two bid totals be read. Mr. 
Bontreger stated Steve's Specialized Services was a total of $433,284 and Ellas Construction 
Company was $500,682.05. 

KIMLEY HORN INVOICES: Mr. Bontreger stated they have an invoice from Kimley Hom that 
needs approval. He stated it was $3,896.17 for construction phase support services. Mr. Hilton 
made a motion to approve the invoice as presented. Mr. Standish seconded, and the motion carried. 

COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS: Mr. Bontreger stated they have a letter from Kaitlyn Boomsma, 
Co=unity Corrections. He stated this letter is requesting the approval to move forward with an 
estimate from Haley's Lock, Safe, and Key for an updated door control system. He stated they 
have been having issues with the doors. He stated they have budgeted the amount of money to 
handle this. He stated the total is $32,668. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve Co=unity 
Corrections request of getting a new lock/door monitoring system. Mr. Standish seconded, and the 
motion carried. 

COUNTY ENGINEER JACK HABERLIN: Mr. Haberlin stated he has 3 right-of-way permits for 
approval. He stated one is with IMEG by 500 West 1000 North. He stated the other two are for 
MCC Network and are on 1100 North. Mr. Bontreger stated he has spoke with REMC and Mercury 
has been laying some of their fiber right over top of where REMC has just done work. He stated 
they need to make sure that gets co=unicated that they need to put it in properly, not right over 
top of what's been because he does not think the depth is what it needs to be. Mr. Haberlin stated 
by law they have to let utilities go in the right-of-way and they have very small right-of-way. He 
stated when that law was written it was to put poles in the ground to get electricity out to the rural 
areas. He stated now there's natural gas and fiber also. He stated sometimes people can work 
together to make one big trench and put 3 utilities all in the same trench. He stated they can try to 
put that in permitting. He stated they could get to the point where they have a fulltime employee 
that goes around and watches these people. Mr. Bontreger stated he did not know if there is 
something that is co=unicated with them that says if you encounter somebody else's stuff don't 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

September 2, 2025 

PAGE78 

COUNTY ENGINEER JACK HABERLIN CONT'D: go over the top of it. Mr. Haberlin stated 
he does not have an answer for that. Mr. Bontreger discussed a company that contacted him about 
putting in a network in the county. Mr. Haberlin recommended these permits be approved as 
presented. Mr. Standish asked Mr. Haberlin to make sure the applicants know that the county does 
not allow plowing that it is either open cut or directional bore. Mr. Haberlin stated they are 
working on rewording the right-of-way applications. Mr. Bontreger stated there are 3 permits, I in 
Wheatfield and 2 in Kenner. Mr. Hilton made a motion to approve the permits as presented. Mr. 
Standish seconded, and the motion carried. 

HIGHWAY: Ed Cain was not present. Mr. Haberlin gave an update for the highway department. 
He stated they paved Airport Road, are currently working on 500, and they do excellent work. Mr. 
Haberlin stated he has an agreement from Jake with Butler, Fairman, and Seufert for the 
Commissioners that never got signed. He stated they are replacing guardrail on a bridge. He stated 
he emailed them about another bridge and is waiting for a response. He stated they should send it 
to as many people as possible. He stated with that bridge, because of the amount, they do not have 
to advertise it so the more they ask and send it to the better. 

NEWTON TOWNSHIP ASSISTANCE GUIDELINE: Margaret Miller, Newton Township 
Trustee, was not present at the meeting. Ms. Miller submitted the Newton Township Assistance 
Guidelines to the Commissioners. Mr. Bontreger stated he will make sure it is available to the 
other Commissioners for reading. 

CONCERNED CITIZEN JOHN ROORDA STOP SIGN 1000 N. 600 W.: Mr. John Roorda stated 
he lives at 5916 West 1000 North,just on the south side of Sandy Pines Golf Course. He stated he 
would like to see a stop sign added to this intersection. He stated the worst is when you are coming 
south on 600 and you try and look to the west. He stated the first issue is that the road bends just 
slightly to the north. He stated the persons landscaping on the northwest comer comes quite close 
to that road and in order to see down that looking west you have to pull really close to the road. 
He stated it affects him because he lives in that area so he sees it all the time. He stated you have 
to pull out so close that you look left and don't see anyone coming, look right, and then look left 
again and there is a car coming that wasn't there before. He stated they travel at a high rate of 
speed. He stated it is better since the county put in a new culvert but they are still hitting it at 45-
50 miles an hour and that includes county trucks. He stated he comes from a background heavy 
laden in safety and he would predict in the next decade if they don't put a stop sign there they will 
have an accident there. He stated he understands it will inconvenience some people because they 
are going to have to slow down and stop but he values safety more then inconvenience. Mr. Hilton 
stated after last months meeting he went through the intersection in all 3 directions. He stated 
looking west he saw 4 or 5 telephone poles of visibility and looking to the east he saw 7, 8, 9 
telephone poles of visibility. He stated he contacted the county highway department and if they 
have not already they are supposed to cut back some of the vegetation to the west of 600. He stated 
they are also going to put added signage in for dangerous intersection, though traffic, things like 
that. He stated he also pulled police reports from Sheriff Williamson and there has been nothing 
recorded there since 2015, as far as an accident, just a few intermittent speed patrols, things like 
that. He stated Chief Deputy Wallace lives down that way as well and he has not reported anything 
as well. He stated they received calls this weekend in opposition to a stop sign at that intersection. 
He stated they are going to continue to have police/law enforcement look into that and travel that 
area and monitor it. Mr. Hilton stated right now they are not going to add the stop sign but that is 
not to say that that would not change in the future. He stated he does not want to get to the point 
where something tragic has to happen first but right now there is not too much evidential proof of 
a necessity for approval. Mr. Bontreger stated the initial decision is to put additional signage up. 
Mr. Roorda stated he gets their decision but God forbid somebody gets hurt he hopes it doesn't 
rest too much on their conscience about it by just not putting a stop sign there. Mr. Roorda stated 
that area is building and getting more and more traffic on it and he thinks they are making the 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

September 2, 2025 

PAGE79 

CONCERNED CITIZEN JOHN ROORDA STOP SIGN 1000 N. 600 W. CONT'D: wrong 
decision. Mr. Haberlin stated he agrees with Mr. Hilton on this. He stated first off, they need a 
petition, how many people want it. He stated he knows where Mr. Roorda built his house and there 
are cars on the county road and we have too many speed limit signs, they're so slow, people have 
to get to work and things. He stated we should not use stop signs to control speed and all that. Mr. 
Roorda asked then what is your solution. Mr. Haberlin stated it's fine, stop, look left, look right, 
be a mature person. Mr. Roorda stated what about people going 50, 60 miles an hour down that 
road. Mr. Haberlin stated get them arrested for speed. He stated because of older commissioner's 
the speed limits are now 35 and nobody follows them. Mr. Roorda stated if he's going 70 miles an 
hour down to Rensselaer or something its ok because that speed limit sign doesn't mean anything. 
Mr. Bontreger stated no, the point is that the speed limit is posted and if you exceed that you would 
be subjected to getting stopped. He stated it is a good idea for them to keep an eye on this 
intersection. Mr. Hilton stated the patrol from the Sheriff's Department will be going through there 
with more frequency and there will be additional signage. Mr. Bontreger thanked Mr. Roorda for 
coming to the meeting. Mr. Vince Urbano stated he also agrees with Mr. Hilton. He stated people 
need to be accountable for their actions and their vehicles, they can't put LED signs on every stop 
sign out there. He stated they also have people stealing them when they do put them up. He stated 
people have to be accountable, they need to educate themselves before they get behind that wheel 
of a vehicle. 

CONCERNED CITIZEN CINDY ZANDER: Ms. Zander stated she lives at 1712 East 950 North, 
Wheatfield. She stated she spoke to the Commissioner's about her neighbor who she has been 
dealing with for over 2 years. She stated she has spoken to her neighbor nicely and not nicely. She 
stated this neighbor has a dog inside all day long and then at midnight, 1, 2, 3, 4, it just barks 
continuously. She stated she is not in a town and there is no noise ordinance so the police have not 
been able to help and animal control has not been able to help. She stated the lady thinks its funny. 
She stated she is wondering if the Commissioners can pass something, if not a noise ordinance, 
maybe a dog nuisance barking ordinance. Mr. Hilton stated the newly appointed Animal Control 
Director is at the meeting, Kendra Hearod. Ms. Zander stated the dog is a doodle. Ms. Hearod 
stated it is a livestock guarding dog, there to protect the flock or the heard, and whenever they are 
alerting for predators in the area, it would be at the times that they are discussing. Ms. Zander 
stated it barks literally non-stop and it does not live with the livestock. Ms. Hearod stated your 
address is in Walker Township which is outside of the Wheatfield City Ordinance. She stated Ms. 
Zander's property has 4.93 acres and there is another 4.91 acres in between the properties, and 
then the property that is being complained about has an additional 4 point something acres ofland. 
She stated she is not really sure how Ms. Zander is able to say for sure that that is her dog because 
it has a gated drive, you can't get access to that drive. Ms. Zander stated she has a picture of the 
dog, she stated the women said it was not her dog barking so she went and took a picture of it. She 
stated the lady said the dog was sleeping right now at her feet so she went and took a picture of it 
standing outside. Ms. Hearod stated then she measured from the front of Ms. Zanders property to 
the other property and it is almost a quarter of a mile away. Ms. Hearod said she understands that 
it is a nuisance for her but the state regulation for animal nuisance says that anything regarding 
animal husbandry, which would include livestock guarding dogs, it is excluded from any sort of 
noise ordinance. Ms. Zander stated livestock guarding dogs live with the livestock and this dog 
does not. Ms. Hearod stated that the owner is saying it is a livestock guarding dog. Ms. Zander 
stated the owner also says its not her dog. Ms. Hearod stated she gets where she could say that it 
is not her dog because there are multiple animals around and it is hard to pinpoint directly that it 
is her dog. Mr. Hilton thanked Ms. Hearod for her diligence. Ms. Hearod stated she is not here to 
say that no, it does not bother her, she is sure it does, but whenever you are out in the county that 
is part of animals. Ms. Zander stated the dog barks non-stop for 5 hours. Ms. Hearod stated she is 
not saying that is all right she is saying it is part of livestock herding. Additional discussion was 
held concerning livestock guarding dogs. Attorney Beaver stated the difference is whether it is a 
public nuisance or a private nuisance. He stated a public nuisance is something that affects other 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

September 2, 2025 

PAGE80 

CONCERNED CITIZEN CINDY ZANDER CONT'D: neighbors. He stated he would 
recommend that she consult with an attorney about a civil, private nuisance action against the 
neighbor because the county is confined by all the laws, jurisdictions, and zoning. He stated she 
would be a lot more open-ended from a civil standpoint as a neighbor and would not have to worry 
so much about the limitations of what the government authority is. She stated she would have 
much more flexibility. Mr. Bontreger stated they can't make an ordinance to single out one 
particular person and they have not had any other equivalent concerns at this time. He understands 
that it will be inconvenient and will possible cost money to retain an attorney but apparently that 
might be her best option. 

REQUEST FOR COURTHOUSE LAWN USE MICHELLE BOLEY: Ms. Boley was not present 
at the meeting and an application had not be submitted at the time of the meeting. Mr. Bontreger 
stated this will be tabled until there is something for them to act on. 

JASPER COUNTY TRAILS MICHELLE LAGESTEE: Ms. Lagestee stated they are seeking 
approval to install a concrete step launch by the Kankakee River and County Road 400 W. to make 
that more safely accessible to kayakers. She stated it is a small parcel owned by the county. Mr. 
Urbano stated Scott and himself, along with the Kankakee River Basin Commission have been 
actively trying to help them with this. He stated this is a parcel that is owned by the county. He 
stated they have an access point at Tefft and then the Lake County Parks and there is nothing in 
between. He stated this is used quit a bit and it would be nice to have a spot there and possibly 
even a couple other spots if they can find them. Ms. Lagestee stated they were hoping to acquire 
additional property there, then they could have made it ADA compliant with better parking but she 
does not think that is going to be the case, they were not able to acquire the additional property. 
She stated they are hoping to enhance the county site so instead of people going down rocks they 
could, with their blessing, install some concrete steps with a kayak slide. Ms. Lagestee stated DNR 
representative Weston did look at the property. She stated the DNR said there was not enough 
property as it stands to be a DNR site. She stated this would not be an ADA compliant site but 
would be better then it is now. She stated they were not able to get the property from the landowner 
at this time. Mr. Bontreger asked Attorney Beaver what type of agreement they would need and 
would they have to have any input on how the steps were constructed and engineered. Attorney 
Beaver stated they need to address this carefully because they need to provide something that is 
safe, that they are inviting people to access that property to do things that are physical, and in 
getting access to a river you do not want to have a drowning incident or something along those 
lines, somebody slips and falls because the steps are not spaced properly, it would have to be 
designed carefully and they will need to make sure there is insurance. Mr. Bontreger asked if they 
would consider leasing this property to them and let the liability fall on the Trails Club as opposed 
to the county maintaining the liability or vacating the property. Attorney Beaver stated there could 
be some sort of vacating the property to another entity with the condition that it be used for public 
access to the river and that would offload that liability as well so that it is not county owned. He 
stated if you have a lease the operation of the property is something that would be insulated so if 
there's any activities that are on there the people who have control over that property are letting 
people in and out and somebody bets hurt those people who have the control are responsible. He 
stated as far as the physical makeup of that site and how its built that would still be on the land 
owner and whoever builds it. He stated there could be a real estate conveyance for that property 
for that purpose or the county could be involved in putting this together with the design, the build, 
and make sure that it is done correctly and then the entity would be responsible for the access and 
maintenance and the county could be the additional insured on their policy, the entity could be the 
additional insured on the county's policy and so it would be a partnership. He stated there are 
probably a few different ways to go about doing it. Mr. Hilton asked if the reason they have that 
amount of property that they do right there on that easement is because they used that for the bridge 
reconstruction, correct? He asked, if something were to happen on that site would that interfere 
with a further bridge project? Mr. Haberlin stated it could, if there was bridge work they would 
have to use that property for the bridge. Mr. Urbano asked where parking is going to be. 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

September 2, 2025 

PAGE81 

JASPER COUNTY TRAILS MICHELLE LAGESTEE CONT'D: Ms. Lagestee stated people will 
not be parking on the neighboring property. She stated people are already parking and going in the 
river at this location now. She stated there was an incident in early August where people were 
kayaking and a storm came through. She stated it was very hard for them to get out because there 
is an 18.8-mile gap. She stated Jasper County does not have a safe river access point. She stated 
this would help people get out better because people are already using it there. She stated there is 
also the Indiana Recreational Use Statute that would cover the use of this. Mr. Urbano stated he is 
not against this, that it is needed, and it is a shame that there was not an agreement so they had a 
little more room for them to do what they really wanted to do. Ms. Lagestee stated people are 
already accessing the river now and walking over mosey rocks now and they are just trying to 
enhance the site. Mr. Ed Cain stated they just mow roadsides they do not go down and mow any 
of that. Mr. Standish asked if the Trails Club would be open to a lease if that is the avenue that is 
chosen. Ms. Lagestee stated they would discuss that. She stated this is a collaborate effort with 
Northwest Indiana Paddlers, Indiana Dunes Tourism, Town of Hebron, Town of Kouts, Jasper 
County Economic Development, and Kankakee and Yellow River Basin. Mr. Standish stated if 
they ever had to do anything with that bridge again, they would need that area so from that aspect 
if it became vacating the area or leasing the area his opinion would be leasing the area so they 
could always close their access in the event that the space was needed for the bridge and not to 
cause anymore liability for the county. Mr. Hilton stated he sees vehicles parked there every 
weekend, whether they are there bank fishing or throwing a tube in the river. The Indiana 
Recreation Use Statue was discussed. Ms. Lagestee stated there is the desire for people to get 
outside, get active, and in nature and using these spaces and it is hard if the landowners along the 
river are very protective of it when there are a lot of other people that would like to safely use it. 
Mr. Bontreger asked Attorney Beaver to look into a possible agreement and to coordinate with 
insurance to see how it would affect the insurance. Mr. Eric Sprenna, Northwest Indiana Paddling 
Association, stated his club was behind the initial push to have the Kankakee River designated as 
a National Recreation Trail. He stated around 10 years ago the entire Kankakee River was 
designated a National Recreation Trail. Mr. Sprenna stated the National Water Trail Planning 
Resource guidelines say there should be an access point every 10 miles. He stated if this access 
site were allowed to be developed this would close an almost 20-mile gap. He stated it would be a 
great addition to an already existing National Recreation Trail. He stated the river is unique 
because it has levees on both sides, the current's faster, and there is a great difference in water 
elevation throughout the course of the year and the step launch seems to serve that site the best. 
Mr. Hilton stated he thinks it is a phenomenal idea but they have to get the liability aspect right 
and make sure everyone is protected. Mr. Sprenna stated the Indiana Recreational Use Statute 
protects from liability, agritourism provider, and according to the legal definition there, that 
includes canoeing and kayaking activities. Attorney Beaver stated that statute was repealed July 
1st. Ms. Lagestee stated the Greenways Foundation of Indiana is working with a team to make it 
stronger. Attorney Beaver stated it may have been rewritten and re-codified elsewhere so it is going 
to take a bit of research to see if it has been relocated elsewhere in the statute. Mr. Bontreger stated 
they will add this to next months agenda. Chairman of the Board of the Porter County Tourism 
stated they have been looking for access points on Porter County's side and have not been able to 
find any at this point in time. He stated they tried to get information on the old restaurant that is 
sitting on the Kankakee River but cannot seem to get enough information from anyone there. He 
stated the site they are talking about is an ideal site because it would split the 20-mile gap. Mr. 
Urbano stated the Kankakee River Yell ow River Commission is unanimously in favor of this. He 
stated they are in the process of putting markers on the bridges to give the floaters reference points. 
He stated they are also putting up different markers such as: safe zones, red zones, water heights, 
whether you should be on the river or not, etc., to guide the paddlers. Michelle with Porter County 
Tourism and Northwest Indiana Paddling Association stated in the proposal they handed out the 
Technical Advisory Committee of the Kankakee River Basin Yellow River Basin Development 
Commission unanimously adopted the recommendation that they should have 2 new kayak or 
canoe launches between Dunn's Bridge and Shelby. She stated they also clean up the river, when 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

September 2, 2025 

PAGE82 

JASPER COUNTY TRAILS MICHELLE LAGESTEE CONT'D: they are out and see garbage 
they pick it up, they keep bags on their kayaks for that, they want it to be beautiful, clean, and 
enjoyable for everyone. 

OTHER BUSINESS: 

COMMISSIONER HILTON: Mr. Hilton stated he appreciates everyone's patience with the phone 
service that we have had at the courthouse the last couple of weeks. He stated he knows there have 
been some departments using personal cell phones to get business and conduct the day to day. He 
asked if there is an opportunity that they can provide a stipend for those. Mr. Bontreger stated that 
is something they can talk about. He stated there was a lightning strike that took out the phones 
and they were already in the process of having new phones installed. He stated the vendor is now 
ramping up that process to accelerate getting those installed. He stated they can talk about it and 
determine how much that would be if it is needed. 

COUNTY ENGINEER JACK HABERLIN: Mr. Haberlin informed Jake with Kirnley Hom that 
they did get the guardrail agreement signed. He stated maybe September 5th to open the quick bids 
and they were going to send it out to some other bridge contractors. He stated they have looked at 
a couple of options for the realignment of Bridge 88 and the bridge and culvert systems that could 
be installed there as well as estimates for that work. He stated one is a single span structure that 
would allow for the legal drains to stay as they are now and another is some realignment of those 
drains. He stated the cost comparisons are relatively close. He stated Phil and Alex went out on 
Friday and did take some recon on some other culverts and maybe another potential solution that 
might exist there. He stated the total projects costs are in the ballpark of $2.5 to $2.9 million. He 
stated October is the next call for projects with 2026 funding. He stated the State has reduced the 
overall amount allowable to $ I million from $1.5 million so there will be a reduction in the amount 
of work that they can get done. He stated those applications open on October I st and will be due at 
the end of October. He stated there is a 3-month turnaround to get a contractor under contract and 
submitted to INDOT so work could then begin basically when weather breaks in 2026. He stated 
the wheel tax component takes effect in 2027. He stated he thinks it has to be implemented by 
September of2026 to make it to that following year. He stated there is a pool of funding available, 
if you do not have a wheel tax, to apply for your million dollars in a competitive grant like always. 
He stated if there is a wheel tax in place you become part of the formula where you get 
disbursements automatically though the program and then any remaining amount that you would 
have between your disbursements and a million dollars you would competitively submit a grant 
for to make up the difference up to a million dollars. He stated this is the incentive from the State 
to enact a wheel tax, it is a guaranteed revenue stream for the program. Mr. Haberlin stated he 
would like to know how many dollars each year Jasper County citizens pay in the CCMG already. 
He stated he has contacted some representatives and they have not been able to tell him. Mr. 
Haberlin stated they created CCMG for the counties to do the work and the citizens are already 
paying into it and now they want to take part of it away unless we tax our citizens again with a 
wheel tax. Mr. Standish stated Marion County gets the first $50 million. Mr. Standish asked for 
Bridge 88, reconstruction of the waterways was mentioned, would that then enter into a lot longer 
timeframe of completion. Jake stated it appears the permitting is going to be about the same 
regardless. He stated from the review that they have done so far, they are talking about a month or 
two time difference. He stated that would require about 2 acres of land to be acquired for the 
realignment and there is a cost to that. He stated the cost of grounds is right around $13,000 an 
acre. Mr. Haberlin stated they are working on a grant bridge in Remington right now. He stated it 
takes from the time they are awarded a grant to go to construction, 5 years. He stated that is a new 
deck and a little bent work. He stated the contractors bid was $800,000 - $900,000. He stated throw 
in the Butler, Fairman, and Seufert, if they did this Bridge 88 on their own at $2.1, that is not a bad 
price. Mr. Bontreger stated if they self-fund that they can do it on their own timeline. The Cum 
Bridge Fund was discussed. Jake stated any federal funding that would be obtained would be done 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

September 2, 2025 

PAGE83 

COUNTY ENGINEER JACK HABERLIN CONT'D: so through a competitive process so first. 
you have to get the funding and those funds are out until 2030 as it stands already to just get to 
that point where that money is available. He stated on top of that you have other processes that 
have to be done, permitting, environmental documentation, things that drive up the cost of the 
engineering side, the soft costs, as well as the construction since you are dealing with INDOT, 
contractors are going to have more administration and generally you see that price increase as well. 
He stated in the past the county was typically not interested in any federally funded bridge if it 
wasn't coming up against a million or more. 

ATTORNEY BEAVER: Attorney Beaver asked if the Commissioners do wish to proceed with 
entering into a formal contract with VS Engineering. He stated they have been working under an 
MOU for about a year now, and that was with an $80,000 scope of services, and then with the 
agreement in principle to increase that to 160, back in January, that looks like an extra S0's coming 
for the county, then the Commissioners could enter into the formal agreement with the scope not 
to exceed 160. Attorney Beaver stated this is the same document that was sent to the 
Commissioners back in February or so, and it has been tabled. He stated he has no problem if the 
Commissioners what to proceed with that or if they would want to hold off and see exactly when 
that check comes in. Mr. Bontreger stated they have been doing the work and they have had the 
commitment to get it completed to finish funding it from the company. Mr. Standish asked if the 
funding should be here this week. Attorney Beaver stated funding was initialed on Thursday. Mr. 
Hilton made a motion to approve the formalized agreement with VS Engineering for the 
construction compliance of the Zelestra project. Mr. Standish seconded and the motion carried. 
Attorney Beaver stated it is set up for e-signature by Mr. Bontreger and the Commissioners can 
authorize that also. Mr. Standish made a motion to allow Mr. Bontreger to sign the agreement on 
behalf of the Commissioners. Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. Attorney Beaver stated 
there is the contract renewal by vendor ARCEM Solutions with minor changes from the prior years 
that is effective January 1st. Mr. Bontreger stated they will add that to the October agenda. 

KIMLEY HORN, JAKE: Jake with Kim!ey Hom stated regarding Bridge 66's guardrail repair, 
those quotes are going to be received later this week and he is not sure if Attorney Beaver might 
have a suggestion on motion that would allow for the expedition of the quote to be authorized for 
work to begin before the Commissioners meet next. Attorney Beaver asked if this is for emergency 
work that needs to be done. Jake stated yes. Attorney Beaver stated they can declare that 
circumstance and the Commissioners then can authorize it. Jake stated the quotes are standard 
quotes, no sealed quotes. Attorney Beaver stated the Commissioner could authorize emergency 
work on a scope not to exceed $50,000 with the quotes being received and approved during the 
Commissioner's next meeting. Mr. Bontreger asked if they can proceed ahead of time and the 
Commissioners can approve the quotes after the fact. Attorney Beaver stated yes, if the 
Commissioners approve this process not to exceed the $50,000 due to the emergency, and get 
started on it and then do the formal authorization during the next public meeting. Mr. Standish 
made a motion to approve emergency work for Bridge 66 for guardrail repair not to exceed $50,000 
and the Commissioners to sign the quote that comes in at the next meeting so they can proceed 
receiving quotes and moving forward with work and also to allow Mr. Bontreger to sign on behalf 
of the Commissioners as needed. Mr. Hilton seconded, and the motion carried. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

MARY EDDY: Mary Eddy stated she is a resident of Rustling Oaks-Wheatfield and joined the 
meeting via Zoom. She stated they have had some utility work being done recently that their 
neighborhood is concerned of. She stated they had Bright Speed internet for years. She stated 
REMC came through the neighborhood and put in high speed. She stated they are very happy with 
them and most of the residents have switched to them and she would like to thank the 
Commissioners for approving that if they are the ones that did it. She stated they have a current 
provider that is coming through to put an additional service in for high speed internet called 
Mercury Fiber. She stated she understands easement and right-of-way, its property that they 



REGULAR MEETING OF THE JASPER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

September 2, 2025 

PAGE84 

MARY EDDY CONT'D: maintain, mow, ect, to keep the neighborhood beautiful but it is not their 
property it is for the use of utilities and so forth. She stated in general they see utilities coming in 
with army green colored boxes, low profile, and usually in the comers of the lots and so forth. She 
stated this installation is far different. She stated they are putting in 3-foot poles, bright fluorescent 
orange, and not always in the comer of the lots. She stated several neighbors have reported that 
the workers are leaving trash behind in their yards. She stated it has not been a pleasant experience 
for them. She stated they welcome the competition to REMC and multiple providers and options 
and don't object to the fiber optic being laid. She stated they are not happy about the aesthetically 
pleasing beauty of their neighborhood being demolished with fluorescent high-profile poles. Mr. 
Bontreger stated they can reach out to Mercury and let them know the displeasure that is happening 
out there and suggest that they change their practices and potentially fix anything that is unsightly. 
Mr. Standish stated he assumes the poles she is speaking of are buried cable markers. Ms. Eddy 
stated she believes so. She stated sometimes its in every other yard, sometimes it not in the comer, 
and it is the installation of it that they have a problem with the fluorescent orange. She stated it has 
riddled their neighborhood and it is not just their neighborhood, she has seen them going up all 
over Wheatfield. She stated she has called Mercury herself and she did speak to the customer 
service rep and left messages for the owner, the co-founder, etc. and have received no return calls 
and she does not know what to do from here. Mr. Bontreger stated the Commissioners will attempt 
to contact the company on this end and see if they can work, change their practices, and clean up 
some of their installations. Mr. Standish stated he thinks they are required to identify their location 
of the buried cable, there is a standard out there that they are going to have to go by but the question 
would have to be asked is if there is something less intrusive that they can put out there. Mr. 
Bontreger stated the Commissioners will see if they can get a company representative at the next 
meeting and get some answers for her. 

There being no further business Mr. Hilton made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Standish 
seconded, and the motion carried. 

ATTEST: <;?~ 
:...r I 

Rein Bontreger, President 

Diana Boersma, Auditor of Jasper County 

Hilton, Vice President 

() 


